
 Page 1 

AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

January 5, 2023 | 6:30 PM 
Council Chambers 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, January 5, 2023, beginning 
at 6:30 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651, at which time the following agenda 
will be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene 
into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any item 
on the agenda at any time during the meeting. Pursuant to Texas Government Code 551.127, one or more members 
of the governing body may appear via videoconference call. The presiding officer and a quorum of the City Council 
will be physically present at this meeting. 

If you would like to watch the meeting live, you may go to the City’s live streaming link at 
https://www.lucastexas.us/departments/public-meetings/. 

How to Provide Input at a Meeting:  

Speak In Person: Request to Speak forms will be available at the meeting. Please fill out the form 
and give to the City Secretary prior to the start of the meeting. This form will also allow a place 
for comments.  

Submit Written Comments: If you are unable to attend a meeting and would like to submit 
written comments regarding a specific agenda item, email City Secretary Erin Day at 
eday@lucastexas.us by no later than 3:30 pm the day of the meeting. The email must contain the 
person’s name, address, phone number, and the agenda item(s) for which comments will be made. 
Any requests received after 3:30 pm will not be included at the meeting. 

Call to Order 

• Roll Call
• Determination of Quorum
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones
• Pledge of Allegiance

Citizen Input 

1. Citizen Input.

Community Interest 
Pursuant to Section 5510415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 
1) expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of
individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6)
announcements involving imminent threat to public health and safety.

2. Items of Community Interest.



 Page 2 

Public Hearing 

3. Continuation of a Public Hearing to consider adopting Ordinance 2022-12-00963
approving the rezoning request made by Sudhir Sakaria with 3R Land Properties L.C.,
property owner, to rezone 4 parcels of land on the north side of Parker Road from
Residential 1.5 acres to Residential 1 acre, situated in the Lewis P. Turner Survey, Abstract
No. 901, Tract 4, 2.280 acres and Tract 5, 3.9943 acres, and the John Gray Survey, Abstract
No. 349, Tract 6, 8.5 acres and Tract 7, 10.296 acres.

A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn
B. Public Hearing
C. Take action on Ordinance

4. Public Hearing to consider amendments to the Land Use Assumptions and Capital
Improvement Plan under which an Impact Fee may be amended for water and roadways
within the City of Lucas. (Cancelled)

Consent Agenda 
All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommended to the City Council for a 
single vote approval. If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote. 

5. Consent Agenda:

A. Approval of the minutes of the December 15, 2022 City Council meeting. (City
Secretary Erin Day)

B. Approval of Amendment No. 1 to the Interlocal Agreement between Collin County
and the City of Lucas for Law Enforcement Services. (City Manager Joni Clarke)

Regular Agenda 

6. Consider adopting Ordinance 2023-01-00964 amending the City’s Code of Ordinances,
Chapter 8, Offenses and Nuisances, Article 8.02 Junked Vehicles. (Development Services
Director Joe Hilbourn)

7. Discuss the West Lucas Road Reconstruction Project regarding the impacts of the
alternative design and provide direction to the City Manager. (Mayor Jim Olk, Public Works
Director Scott Holden)

8. Discuss the location requirements related to the installation of utility structures on public
right-of-way or easements and provide direction to the City Manager. (Councilmember
Debbie Fisher)

9. Consider the 88th Legislative Session and discuss any proposed bill or significant
resolution that may have an impact on the City of Lucas and provide guidance to the City
Attorney and City Manager. (City Manager Joni Clarke)

10. Consider appointing City Council liaisons to the City’s boards, commissions, and
committees, as well as outside local organizations. (City Secretary Erin Day)



 Page 3 

Executive Session 

11. Executive Session: An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting.

As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may
convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice
from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting.
This meeting is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code.

12. Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the
Executive Session.

13. Adjournment.

Certification 
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin 
board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us 
on or before 5:00 p.m. on December 30, 2022. 

_______________________________________ 
Erin Day, City Secretary 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons 
attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed to City Secretary 
Erin Day at 972.912.1211 or by email at eday@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 City of Lucas
City Council Agenda Request

January 5, 2023 
Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

Agenda Item Request 

Citizen Input. 

Background Information 

NA

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

NA

Budget/Financial Impact 

NA

Recommendation 

NA

Motion 

NA



Item No. 02 City of Lucas
City Council Agenda Request

January 5, 2023 
Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

Agenda Item Request 

Items of Community Interest. 

Background Information 

NA

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

NA

Budget/Financial Impact 

NA

Recommendation 

NA

Motion 

NA



Item No. 03 City of Lucas
City Council Agenda Request

January 5, 2023 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn

Agenda Item Request 

Continuation of a Public Hearing to consider adopting Ordinance 2022-12-00963 approving the 
rezoning request made by Sudhir Sakaria with 3R Land Properties L.C., property owner, to rezone 
4 parcels of land on the north side of Parker Road from Residential 1.5 acres to Residential 1 acre, 
situated in the Lewis P. Turner Survey, Abstract No. 901, Tract 4, 2.280 acres and Tract 5, 3.9943 
acres, and the John Gray Survey, Abstract No. 349, Tract 6, 8.5 acres and Tract 7, 10.296 acres.

A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn
B. Public Hearing
C. Take action on Ordinance

Background Information 

This lot is currently zoned Residential 1.5 acres (R1.5) and the applicant is requesting a change in 
zoning to Residential 1 acre (R-1). The tract is 25 +/- acres of land and is shown in the 
Comprehensive Plan to be planned for R-1. 

At the November 10, 2022 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the request was 
recommended as a denial by a unanimous vote. Pursuant to Section 14.02.063 of the City’s Zoning 
Code, the applicant is appealing the decision of the Planning and Zoning Commission. At the 
December 15, 2022 City Council meeting, a public hearing was held and the City Council voted 
to continue the public hearing at the next meeting due to two City Councilmembers being absent. 
A vote by 75% of the City Council or greater is required to overturn a decision by the Planning 
and Zoning Commission.  

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

1. Public Notice
2. Location Map
3. Depiction
4. Legal Description
5. Zoning Checklist
6. Land Use Map
7. Proposed Concept Plan
8. Ordinance #2022-12-00963

Budget/Financial Impact 

NA



Item No. 03 City of Lucas
City Council Agenda Request

January 5, 2023 

Recommendation 

The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended not approving the zoning request. However, 
staff recommends approval of the requested zoning change because it is in conformance with the 
Comprehensive Plan.   

Motion 

I make a motion to approve/deny adopting Ordinance 2022-12-00963 approving the rezoning 
request made by Sudhir Sakaria with 3R Land Properties L.C., property owner, to rezone 4 parcels 
of land on the north side of Parker Road from Residential 1.5 acres to Residential 1 acre, situated 
in the Lewis P. Turner Survey, Abstract No. 901, Tract 4, 2.280 acres and Tract 5, 3.9943 acres, 
and the John Gray Survey, Abstract No. 349, Tract 6, 8.5 acres and Tract 7, 10.296 acres.



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, will conduct a Public Hearing 
on Thursday, December 15, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, 
Texas to consider an appeal to the City Council regarding a negative recommendation given by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission for a request for a change in zoning from R1.5, Residential 1.5 
acres, to R-1, Residential 1-acre, on a parcel of land described as follows: 

SITUATED in the Lewis P. Turner survey, abstract no. 901 and in the J. Gray survey, abstract no. 349, 
being a survey of the 12.576 acre tract described in a correction deed from Nelda Rae Owens and Myrna 
Marie Godier to 3R Land Properties, L. C., recorded as clerk's file no. 2022000078425 of the Official Public 
Records of Collin County, Texas and a part of the 12.64017 acre tract described in a deed from Phillip E. 
Kennedy and wife, Margaret Jean Kennedy, to 3R Properties LC, recorded in volume 5024, page 1136 of the 
Collin County deed records, being described by metes and bounds as follows:

BEGINNING at a 5/8-inch iron pin found at the northwest corner of said 12.64017 acre tract and the 
northeast corner of the corrected plat of Kirkland Estates West recorded in volume 10, page 74 and volume 
A, page 244 of the Collin County plat records;

THENCE North 88°55'12" East, with the north line of said 12.64017 acre tract, 298.73 feet to a 2.5-
inch iron pipe found at the northeast corner of said 12.64017 acre tract and the northwest corner of said 12.576 
acre tract;

THENCE South 89°34'53" East, with the north line of said 12.576 acre tract, passing at 290.04 feet a 
3/4-inch iron pin found and continuing in all, 296.30 feet to a point at the northeast corner of said 12.576 acre 
tract;

THENCE South 00°23'01" East, 1863.33 feet to a 1/2-inch iron pin set in the north right-of-way line of 
Parker Road(FM 2514), at the northeast corner of the 0.1715 acre tract recorded as clerk's file no. 
20150922001201110;

THENCE North 84°05'06" West, with the north right-of-way line of said Parker Road and with the north 
line of said 0.1715 acre tract, passing at 298.10 feet, the northwest corner of said 0.1715 acre tract and the 
northeast corner of the 0.1458 acre tract recorded as clerk's file no. 20151125001484280, continuing with the 
north line of said 0.1458 acre tract, in all 603.38 feet to an iron pin found with aluminum cap at the northwest 
corner of said 0.1458 acre tract; same being in the west line of said 12.64017 acre tract and the east line of 
said Kirkland Estates West;

THENCE North 00°13'55" West, with the west line of said 12.64017 acre tract and the east line of said 
Kirkland Estates West, 1797.66 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING and containing 25.130 acres.

Those wishing to speak for or against the above item are invited to attend. If you are unable to attend 
and have comments, you may send them to City of Lucas, Attention: City Secretary, 665 Country Club 
Road, Lucas, Texas 75002, or email eday@lucastexas and it will be presented at the hearing. If you 
have any questions about the request, please contact Joe Hilbourn at jhilbourn@lucastexas.us.  



LOCATION MAP: PARKER ROAD DEVELOPMENT 



EXISTING ZONING 
SINGLE FAMILY 

RESIDENTIAL R-1.5 

.., 
... 

"" 
I-

"' 

_,/' 

,/ 

CAR□L Mc:CAHILL 
ET AL 

VOLUME 4372 
PAGEl442 CCDR 

EXISTING ZONING 
AGRICULTURE 

□PEN SPACER A□ 

,/ 
,/ 

,/ 

L□T 20 

CORRECTED PLAT 
KIRKLAND ESTATES'w'EST 

VOLUME 10, PAGE 74 
v□LUME lcp�AGE 244 

'\, 
SHEP���fl,:�REEK 

'

\ 

V□LUME L 
PAGE 242 CCPR 

EXISTING ZONING 

\ R���g��Trt�
I

��2 

_ N 88"55'12' E 298.73' 
-

�
-

S g9•34,53• E 296.30' • 

�EGINNING �1iE1N

f�u����M 
S/8-INCH 
IRON PIN F□UND-CM 
N□RTH'w'EST C□RNER 
12,64017 ACRE TRACT 

R□N PIN F□UND 
'w'ITH ALUMINUM CAP 

3/4-INC 
IR□N PIN F□UND-CM 

25.130 ACRES 

EXISTINGZ□NING 
SINGLE FAMILY 

RESIDENTIAL R-1.5 

PRDP□SEDZ□NING 
SINGLE FAMILY 

RESIDENTIAL R-1 

CLER:::-E
-

:;------Ji.i!!��-���!:_ .... 
20151125001484280 ------OPRCCT 

,_I 

!i�
fS, CJ 

u "' 

::,: 

PARKER ROAD 
F"H 2514 

CLERK'S FILE N O. 
20150922001201110 

OPRCCT 

L□T 4A 
STINSON HIGHLANDS 

PHASE 1 
VOLUME 2015 , 

PAGE 117 8. 118 CCPR 

EXISTING ZONING 
SINGLE FAMILY 

RESIDENTIAL R-1 

'w'ATSON Mc:CREARY,JR 
VOLUME 335, PAGE 119 

CCDR 

ETJ □F CITY□F LUCAS 
ND ZONING 

VICINITY MAP 
NO SCALE 

Surveyed on the ground and under my supervision. 
Office work completed October 6, 2022 

LEGEND 

Office work revised October 17, 2022 

''""'"" �4. 
RegisteredProfessionol LondSurveyor,No.4117 
1101 W. University Orive(U.S. Highwoy 380) 
�;���:t•_;���s 75069 

CCDR COLLIN COUNTY DEED RECORDS 

CCPR C□LLIN C□UNTYPLAT REC□RDS 

100 0 
II II 

'!!nte,1•-

FIRM: BRUCE GEER, SURVEYOR 
FIRM REGISTRATI ON # 10150700 

Developer/Owner: 
3RLondPropertiesL.C. 
3708 Groy Lone 
Porker,Texos 75002 

Surveyor, 
Bruce Geer 
RegisteredProfessionol LondSurveyor, No. 4117 
1101 W. University Drive(U.S. Highwoy 380) 

�;����
•
-;���

s 75069 

ZONING EXHIBIT 
25.130 ACRES 

LEWIS P. TURNER SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 901 AND IN THE 

J. GRAY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 349 
CITY OF LUCAS 

COWN COUNTY, TEXAS 
7259 E. PARKER ROAD 
LUCAS, TEXAS 75002 

SURVEY DATE: 10-6-2022 



Legal Description 
(3R Properties, Parker Road)

SITUATED in the Lewis P. Turner survey, abstract no. 901 and in the J. Gray survey, abstract no. 349, 
being a survey of the 12.576 acre tract described in a correction deed from Nelda Rae Owens and Myrna 
Marie Godier to 3R Land Properties, L. C., recorded as clerk's file no. 2022000078425 of the Official Public 
Records of Collin County, Texas and a part of the 12.64017 acre tract described in a deed from Phillip E. 
Kennedy and wife, Margaret Jean Kennedy, to 3R Properties LC, recorded in volume 5024, page 1136 of the 
Collin County deed records, being described by metes and bounds as follows:

BEGINNING at a 5/8-inch iron pin found at the northwest corner of said 12.64017 acre tract and the 
northeast corner of the corrected plat of Kirkland Estates West recorded in volume 10, page 74 and volume 
A, page 244 of the Collin County plat records;

THENCE North 88°55'12" East, with the north line of said 12.64017 acre tract, 298.73 feet to a 2.5-
inch iron pipe found at the northeast corner of said 12.64017 acre tract and the northwest corner of said 12.576 
acre tract;

THENCE South 89°34'53" East, with the north line of said 12.576 acre tract, passing at 290.04 feet a 
3/4-inch iron pin found and continuing in all, 296.30 feet to a point at the northeast corner of said 12.576 acre 
tract;

THENCE South 00°23'01" East, 1863.33 feet to a 1/2-inch iron pin set in the north right-of-way line of 
Parker Road(FM 2514), at the northeast corner of the 0.1715 acre tract recorded as clerk's file no. 
20150922001201110;

THENCE North 84°05'06" West, with the north right-of-way line of said Parker Road and with the north 
line of said 0.1715 acre tract, passing at 298.10 feet, the northwest corner of said 0.1715 acre tract and the 
northeast corner of the 0.1458 acre tract recorded as clerk's file no. 20151125001484280, continuing with the 
north line of said 0.1458 acre tract, in all 603.38 feet to an iron pin found with aluminum cap at the northwest 
corner of said 0.1458 acre tract; same being in the west line of said 12.64017 acre tract and the east line of 
said Kirkland Estates West;

THENCE North 00°13'55" West, with the west line of said 12.64017 acre tract and the east line of said 
Kirkland Estates West, 1797.66 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING and containing 25.130 acres.





ZONING APPLICATION 

City of Lucas, Texas 

Name of Project: SANDALWOOD TRAIL DEVELOPMENT

___:!___ Initial Zoning (newly annexed or agricultural property) per classification 

__ Rezoning (property currently zoned) per classification 

__ Specific Use Permit (SUP) - see Zoning Ordinance for special requirements and procedures 

Application Fee 

$450.00 

$450.00 

$450.00 

Physical Location of Property: 7259 E. Parker Rd · approx. northeast of McCreary Rd intersection.

{Address and General Location - approximate distance to nearest existing street comer] 

Brief Legal Description of Property (must also attach accurate metes and bounds description): 
Lewis P. Turner Survey, Abstract No. 901 (Tract 4 & 5), and J. Gary Survey, Abstract No. 349 (Tract 6 & 7) 

[Survey/Abstract No. and Tracts; or platted Subdivision Name with Lots/Block] 

372331,372340, 359061,359070 
Collin County Appraisal District Short Account Number: ___________________ _ 

Acreage: 25.13 
(Total) 

Existing Zoning: R 1  .5 Requested Zoning: _R _1 ______________ _

OWNER(S) NAME: 3R LAND PROPERTIES L.C. 

[Attach a detailed description of requested zoning) 

Applicant/ Contact Person: _S _u_d _
h

_
i r

_
S

_
a

_
k

_
a

_
r

_
ia _________ _

Phone Number: 214-727 - 6181 

Title: P rinc ipal 

Company Name: 3R LAND PROPE RTIES L.C. 

Mailing Address: 1 4 70 N. Kimball Ave City: Southlake

Phone: (_)_214-727-61 81 _ Fax:(_) _____ _ Email Address: 

ENGINEER(S) / REPRESENTATIVE(S) NAME: _o_
a

_
v

_
id

_
L

_
e

_
w

_ i_s,_
P

_
.E

_
.

_
·

_
L

_
R

_
E

_
n

_
g
_
in

_
e

_
e

_
ri

_
n

_
g

________ _

Contact Person: - David Lewis, P.E .

Company Name: LR Engineering

Title: Principal 

21 15 Teakwood Ln, Suite 450 
Mailing Address: ___________ _ Plano City: _____ _ State: TX ZIP: 75075 

------

Phone:(_) 972-964-2161

Zoning Application Packet 

Fax: (__J 972-964-203 7 Email Address: engineerin g@lrtexas.com

6JPage 



ZONING APPLICATION (continued)

Name or Project: SANDALWOOD TRAIL DEVELOPMENT 

.,.READ BEFORE SIGNING BELOW: If there should be more than one property owner, complete a separate sheet 
with the same wording as below. TI1e City requires all original signatures. If applicant is other than the property owner a 
"Power of Attorney" with original, notarized signatures is required. (Notaries are available upon submittal.) 

SUBMITTAL DEADLINE: 30 DAYS PRIOR TO P&Z PUBLIC HEARING DA n:. All zoning applications must be advertised 
in the newspaper, and notices must be mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of the subject property. Please contact City staff 
in advance for submittal deadlines. 

ALL APPLICATIONS MUST DE COMPLETE, ACCOMPANIED BY THE APPLICABLE CHECKLIST AND TAX 
CERTIFICATE SHOWING TAXES PAID, BEFORE THEV WILL BE SCHEDULED FOR P&Z AGENDA. ft is the 
applicant's responsibility to be familiar with, and to comply with, all City submi11al requirements (in lhe Zoning & Subdivision 
Ordinances, and any separate submittal policies, requirements and/or checklists 1ha1 may be required from City staff), including the 
number of plans to be submitted, application fees, etc. Please contact City staff in advance for submiual requirements. [Drawings will 
nol be returned to applicant.] 

SUBMISSIONS. Failure to submit all materials to the City with this application will result in delays scheduling the agenda date. 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC RECORDS. The submission of plans/drawings/etc. with this application makes such items public record, 
and the applicanl understands that these items may be viewed by the general public. Unless the applicant expressly states oth erwise 
in writing, submission of this application (with associated plans/drawings/etc.) will be considered consent by the applicant that the 
general public may view and/or reproduce (i.e., copy) such documents. 

ALL PARCELS/PROPERTIES MUST MATCH IN ACREAGE ALL OTHER DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED, WITH NO 
AMBIGlJlTY. 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF COLLIN 

} 
} 

C A'LJ � ' • h a,.,,J /ldo.y �"--BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, on this day personally appeared�U/l s M'", N ,mis ,S\:IP'U'a the undersigned 
who, under oath, stated the following: "[ hereby certify that I am the owner, or duly authorized agent of the owner, {proof attached) for 
the purposes of this application; that all information submitted herein is true and correct. I understand that submitting this application
does not constitute app ....wi=-i incomplete applications will result in delays and possible denial." 

::::z.-

**Owner/ Agent (circle on � 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me, this the� day of ,oCJuP.Sf<., Z.0'22, 

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas: � b;:£A 

Official Use Only Action Taken 

PJanning & Zoning: _________________ _ 

City Council: ___________________ _ 

Applicant Made a Written Withdrawal: Yes or No 

Zoning Application Packet 

II 

Date: 
------------

0 ate: 
-------------

D at c: 
------------



MH
R2

R2
R2

R2

R2

R2

R2

R2 R2

R2

R2

R2

R2

R2

R2

R2

R2

R2
R1

R1

R1

R1

R1

R1

R1

R1

R1.5

R1.5

R1.5

R1.5

R1.5

R1.5

R1.5

R1.5

R1.5

HIGHLAND
PARK

BROCKDALE
PARK

CITY
PARK

NORTH TEXAS
WATER TREATMENT

PLANT

ED

VC

O
AK

W
O

O
D

OLD
STACY

MCMILLEN

LAGO

VISTA EAST

A
R

B
O

R
R

ID
G

E

MARCHMONT

TEXAS

ASHTON

OSAGE

FO
R

D

LAKEVIEW

PA
R

K
E

R

B
E

LLA
V

IS
TA

C
H

U
LA

VISTA

TRAVIS

STALLION

RAMSAY

D
R

AIN

DEL
MAR

COOK

SNIDER

SANTA
MARIA

M
A

LA

AUDUBON

BARRANCA

GRAHAM

K
E

N
ZI

E

DE SOTO
ST

IN
SO

N

C
LE

A
R

W
AT

E
R

BOXWOOD

FRANCESCA

GRAND
CANYON E

D
M

O
N

S
O

N

SHEPHERDS

CREEK

FO
R

ES
T

G
R

O
VE

TA
Y

LO
R

SANJUAN

HILLCREST

SEMINOLE

C
O

U
N

TR
Y

C
LU

B

C
O

U
N

TY
R

O
A

D
88

9

PO
RT

RO
YALE

STACY

RANCHVIEW

PARKER

GREGORY

SHILOH

D
ILLEH

AY

ROCK RIDGE

AS
C

O
T

HIGHLAND

ESTATES

BURKE

LEEWARD

DEER

WINDY

POINTE

LAV
O

N

WINDOMERE

EA
R

L

S
H

A
D

Y

BEECAVES

HICKS

CORINTH
CHAPEL

ROCK C
REEK

ESTA
TE

S

EASTFORK

LI
N

C
O

LN

BLONDY JHUNE

LAKEWAY

W
EL

B
O

R
N

FORD

SA
W

M
IL

L
H

O
N

E
Y

S
U

C
K

LE

KING

SKYVIEW

BAYSIDE

AZTEC

ES
SE

X

BARTON
CREEK

SAGEBRUSH

LEANDER

TE
R

R
Y

MEADOW
GLEN

LINDSEY

REAGENEA

E
N

C
H

A
N

TE
D

FM
 1378

M
C

C
R

E
A

R
Y

MERION

WINNINGKOFF

BALTIMORE

R
E

D
B

U
D

ZILKER

W
R

IG
H

T

KI
M

IN
G

R
AM

LE
W

IS

PLE
ASAN

T
ANGEL

CORAL REEF

KARM
A

TENACITY

ARTHUR

COUNTY
ROAD

888

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

PA
R

K

W
EB

B

O
R

R

H
O

G
G

E

STAR
GAZE

LI
M

E

ELA
IN

E

BLONDY JHUNE

M
O

S
S

R
ID

G
E

STANFORD

IRENE

H
A

R
T

S
H

A
D

Y
G

R
O

V
E

STONY
OAK

HO
LBRO

O
K

C
O

U
N

TR
Y C

LU
B

BLUE
MOON

MARK

OAK
BROOK

CAPROCK

STACY

SAINTJAMES

DU
M

O
NT

LUCAS

CURTIS

C
O

U
N

TY

R
O

AD
 317

BL
UE

W
AT

ER

STACY

H
A

R
V

E
S

T

LAMAR

ROLLINGRIDGE

BELVEDERE
PARK

OVERBROOK

STETSON
DRAKE

SEIS

LAGOS

FAW
N

H
O

LLO
W

CR
ES

TL
AN

D

PARKVIEW

JORDAN

WINNERS

SC
AR

LETT

ERIN

O
A

K
H

IL
L STARPOINT

A
N

D
Y

S

BR
O

O
KH

AV
E

N

M
AY

O
R

N
ATH

A

WILTSHIRE

BO
IS

D
 AR

C

M
E

AD
O

W

WESSEX

ABER
D

EEN

BRIARBROOK

STONECREST

BARRANCA

SAMANTHA

GLENWOOD

BARTON
SPRINGS

SOLITUDE

C
A

M
D

E
N

WINDWARD

OAKMONT

RATHBONE

GIDDINGS

BREEZY

DAY

B
R

Y
C

E

SE
AT

TL
E

S
LE

W
LA

C
AN

TE
R

A

ESTATES

V
IS

TA
R

ID
G

E

KERILAN

B
R

A
E

B
U

R
N

ES
TE

LL
E

H
O

M
E

M
ID

D
LE

TO
N

FOREST
GROVE

ESTATES

R
IO

 B
R

AV
O

S
U

N
VA

LL
E

Y

STIR
LIN

G
BOERNE

H
E

D
G

E
M

A
P

LE

TOULOUSE

SILENTSHORE

FOREST
GROVE

R
E

M
IN

G
TO

N
M

A
R

Y
LEE

BRIANNA

WOODMOOR

PA
R

K

BETHANY

MORNING
MIST

M
A

R
G

A
U

X

ROBERT
SENDER

INDIAN

LE
MON

ABBY

BASTROP

SAN
CARLOS

PINEWOOD

SANTIAGO

SAINT PAUL

GLENCOVE
HIGHLAND

A
S

H
FO

R
D

LOGAN

H
ID

D
EN

PA
SS

BELMONT

YOUNG

H
E

N
D

R
IX

WYNDHAM

EL
IZ

AB
ET

H

PA
LO

 D
U

R
O

CHRISTIAN

H
A

M
ILTO

N

NORTH

STAR

CAM
INO

REAL

EAST

FAIRBROOK

COMBINE

ASHCROFT

ST
O

N
E

G
LE

N

CRESTVIEW

W
ATER

 O
A

K

SC
O

TT
S

BL
U

FF

CHAPARRAL

BR
AN

D
IN

G
IR

O
N

NO
RT

HF
O

RK

K
E

N
TU

C
K

Y

POOL

GALWAY

PA
R

C
H

M
A

N

JESSICA

IN
SP

IR
AT

IO
N

WESTON

COYOTE

DUMONT

LESLIE

INDIGO

D
O

VER

RANCH
HOUSE

GREENHILL

EN
C

LA
V

E

ROCK RIDGE

BASTR
O

P

HAYDEN

DUNAWAY

BELLA
R

AE

BEVERLY

TIMBER

W
ATER

FALL

HUFFINES

P
E

N
N

IN
G

TO
N

SILVER

M
APLE

CREEK
VIEW

ASBURY

CLARKE
SPRINGS

CADDO
LAKE

W
HIT

E 
ROCK

BA
UE

R

ASH

TO
O

LE

H
A

M
P

TO
N

C
O

U
N

TY
R

O
AD

 1034

REGAL

PRIVATE
ROAD 5252

MANOR

RUSHING

TRAVIS
RANCH

CHISHOLM

MURDOCH

SARA

JANNA

WYOMING

H
IG

H
LA

N
D

PE
C

AN
G

R
O

VE

S
P

U
R

G
IN

TR
AC

TO
R

LAGOGRANDE

DORIS

COVE
VIEW

LORRAINE HAMMERLY

G
O

LD
D

U
ST

CA
M

BR
ID

G
E

HICKORY HILL

C
IT

R
U

S

CORDERO

GOOSE

D
O

V
E

C
R

E
E

K

BO
N

H
AM

RIVER
OAKS

SO
APB

ER
R

Y

CO
BA

LT
BA

YO
U

VISTA
OAKS

LAKE

TEXOMA

AZURE

PEARL

CREEK

BEND

SOUTHRIDGE

PRIVATE ROAD 5487

BLOOM

RUBY

POCO

W
ILKES

CEDAR
BEND

HORSEMAN

MARTHA

KARA

ELISA

MONTANA

C
H

O
IC

E

C
IM

AR
R

O
N

STONE
HINGE

G
R

U
EN

E

LO
ST

VA
LLEY

AFFIR
M

ED

AS
H

W
O

O
D

NOCONA

BL
AC

K
D

IA
M

O
N

D

MOSS RIDGE

PRADOVERDE

O
H

A
R

A

S
O

U
TH

V
IE

W

NORTHRIDGE

KI
N

G
SW

O
O

D

BENTWATER

BRISTOL

W
H

IS
PE

R
IN

G
A

C
R

E
S

TI
M

B
E

R

MANOR

W
EN

D
Y

PRIVATE

ROAD

5211

H
IG

H
LA

N
D

PA
R

K

O
R

C
H

A
R

D

CAREY

H
O

LL
Y

HOLYOAK

MEZIER

SKY

G
R

AY

ESTATES

KEN
W

O
O

D

C
H

U
R

C
H

SEC
R

E
TAR

IAT

FOREST
BEND

M
A

N
 O

 W
A

R

GLENBROOK

LY
N

N

1219.986317

8023.641375

9063.871628

1331.647763

5548.663788

5529.211377

3852.90303

34869.55529

25212.520702

30070.56332

30070.56332

12807.949768

12631.150808
2853.581432

4067.85881

°
0 2,5001,250

Feet

LEGEND
CITY OF LUCAS

Floodplain

Lake_Lavon_FEMA

Roads

R2      SINGLE FAMILY- RURAL (2+ ACRES)

R1.5   SINGLE FAMILY - ESTATE (1.5+ ACRES)

R1      SINGLE FAMILY-LOW DENSITY (1 ACRE)

RHD  SINGLE FAMILY- HIGH DENSITY

ED      ESTATE DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

MH    MANUFACTURED HOUSING

C     COMMERCIAL

VC    VILLAGE CENTER

PUBLIC / SEMI-PUBLIC

PARK AND OPEN SPACE

March 16, 2017

R2

C

C

C

C



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

EXISTING�PROPERTY�LINE

PROPOSED�RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPOSED�LOT�LINES

LOT�SETBACK�LIMITS

PROPOSED�PAVED�ROAD

APPROX.�FLOODWAY

LEGEND

1 LOT�ID

S
A

N
D

A
L

W
O

O
D

�T
R

A
IL

�D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
R

E
-Z

O
N

IN
G

�R
1

.5
�T

O
�R

1

7
2
3
7
/7

2
5
9
�E

�P
A

R
K

E
R

�R
D

L
U

C
A

S
,�

T
E

X
A

S
�7

5
0

0
2

A
B

S
�A

0
9

0
1

�T
R

A
C

T
�4

�&
�5

;�
A

B
S

�0
3

4
9

�T
R

A
C

T
�6

�&
�7

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
:�

3
R

�L
A

N
D

�P
R

O
P

E
R

T
IE

S
S

U
D

H
IR

�S
A

K
A

R
IA

�-
�2

1
4
-7

2
7
-6

1
8
1

2022-0535

R
E

-Z
O

N
IN

G
�E

X
H

IB
IT

A
1
0
/1

8
/2

2

SHEET

R
E

V
D

A
T

E

D
E

S
IG

N
�H

IS
T

O
R

Y

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

A
L

�D
E

S
IG

N
�&

�I
N

S
P

E
C

T
IO

N

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

THIS�DRAWING�IS�THE�EXCLUSIVE�PROPERTY�OF�LR�ENGINEERING�AND�IS�PROTECTED�UNDER�COPYRIGHT.��THESE�RIGHTS�HAVE�BEEN�EXTENDED�TO�OUR�CLIENT�WHO'S��NAME�APPEARS�ON�THE�PLAN.��THE�USE�OF�THESE�PLANS��IS�LIMITED�TO��THE�SITE�FOR�WHICH�THEY�WERE�PREPARED�.��REPRODUCTION�OR�DISTRIBUTION�IS�EXPRESSLY�LIMITED�TO�SUCH�USE.�ALTERATIONS�BY�ANY�PARTY�OTHER�THAN�LRE�ARE�NOT�PERMITTED�MAY�VOID�RESPONSIBILITY.��NOTIFY�THIS�ENGINEER�IF�PLANS�APPEAR�TO�HAVE�BEEN�MODIFIED.

2
1

1
5

�T
E

A
K

W
O

O
D

�L
A

N
E

S
U

IT
E

�#
4

5
0

P
L

A
N

O
,�

T
E

X
A

S
��

7
5

0
7

5

F
IR

M
�#

�F
-1

5
6

5
2

P
H

O
N

E
�9

7
2

-9
6

4
-2

1
6

1

F
A

X
��

��
��

9
7

2
-9

6
4

-2
0

3
7

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
@

L
R

T
E

X
A

S
.C

O
M

1

100 50 0

SCALE:�1"�=�100'

13'

12'

24'��CONC.�PAVED�STREET

12'5' 5'

13'

50'�RIGHT-OF-WAY

50'�RIGHT-OF-WAY�WITH�24'�PAVED�STREET
NOT�TO�SCALE

(PAVEMENT�SECTION�SHALL�MEET

THE�CITY�OF�LUCAS�STANDARDS�OR

AS�RECOMMENDED�BY�GEOTECHNICAL�REPORT)

4:14:1 4:14:1

2% 2%

FM�2514�(PARKER�RD)

CL�SANDALWOOD�TRAIL

PROPOSED�RE-ZONING�R1.5�TO�R1

NOTES:

1.

2.

100

EXISTING�PROPERTY�LINE�BEARINGS�SHOWN�ARE�BASED�ON�SURVEY

TITLED�ZONING�EXHIBIT�PROVIDED�BY�BRUCE�GEER,�L.S.,�DATED�10/17/22.

SITE�DEVELOPMENT�SHALL�BE�IN�ACCORDANCE�WITH�CITY�OF�LUCAS

DEVELOPMENT�STANDARDS.

S
A

N
D

A
L

W
O

O
D

�T
R

A
IL



ORDINANCE# 2022-12-00963 

[CHANGE IN ZONING -4 PARCELS OF LAND ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF PARKER ROAD TOTALING ±25.130 ACRES] 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 

COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE AND MAP OF THE CITY OF 

LUCAS, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A CHANGE 

IN ZONING CLASSIFICATION FROM RESIDENTIAL 1.5 (Rl.5) TO 

RESIDENTIAL 1.0 (Rl.0), ON FOUR PARCELS OF LAND, LOCATED 

ON THE NORTH SIDE OF PARKER ROAD, LUCAS, COLLIN 

COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING PART OF THE LEWIS P. TURNER 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 901, TRACT 4, BEING 2.280 ACRES AND 

TRACT 5 BEING 3.9943 ACRES AND THE JOHN GRAY SURVEY, 

ABSTRACT NO. 349, TRACT 6 BEING 8.5 ACRES AND TRACT 7 BEING 

10.296 ACRES, DESCRIBED IN CORRECTION DEED AS RECORDED 
UNDER COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NO. 2022000078425 OF THE 

OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, AND A 
PART OF THE 12.64017 ACRE TRACT DESCRIBED IN A DEED FROM 

PHILLIP E. KENNEDY AND WIFE, MARGARET JEAN KENNEDY, TO 

3R LAND PROPERTIES L.C., RECORDED IN VOLUME 5024, PAGE 

1136 OF THE COLLIN COUNTY DEED RECORDS AND 
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED ON 

EXHIBIT "A" AND EXIDBIT "B" A TT ACHED HERETO; 

PROVIDING A CONFLICTS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 

REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A SA VIN GS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY 
OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND 

DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, Texas and the City Council of 
the City of Lucas, Texas, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas with reference to the granting 
of zoning classifications and changes, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, 
and have held due hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to 
all persons interested and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, and 
the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas is of the opinion and finds that said zoning change should be 
granted and that the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map should be amended; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

LUCAS, TEXAS: 

City of Lucas 
Ordinance# 2022-12-00963 (Change in Zoning - ±25.130 Acres North of Parker Road) 
Approved: January 5, 2023



Section 1. The Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map of the City of Lucas, 
Texas, are hereby amended to grant a change in zoning from Single Family Residential 
1.5-acre Lots (Rl.5) to Single Family Residential, I-Acre Lots (RI), on four parcels of 
land, located on the north side of Parker Road Lucas, Collin County, Texas, and being part 
of the Lewis P. Turner Survey, Abstract No. 901, Tract 4, 2.280 acres and Tract 5, 3.9943 
acres, and in the John Gray Swvey, Abstract No. 349, Tract 6, 8.5 acres and Tract 7, 
10.296 acres., described in Warranty Deed as recorded under County Clerk's File No. 
2022000078425 of the Official Public Records of Collin County, Texas, and a part of 
the 12.64017 acre tract described in a deed from Phillip E. Kennedy and wife, Margaret Jean 
Kennedy, to 3R Land Properties LC, recorded in volume 5024, page 1136 of the Collin 
County deed records and being more particularly described and depicted on Exhibit "A" and 
Exhibit "B,"attached hereto and made part hereof for all purposes. 

Section 2. To the extent of any irreconcilable conflict with the provisions of this ordinance 
and other ordinances of the City of Lucas governing the use and development of the Property 
and which are not expressly amended by this ordinance, the provisions of this ordinance shall be 
controlling. 

Section 3. That all ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the prov1s10ns 
of this Ordinance shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other 
provisions of said Ordinances are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 4. That should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or 
section of this Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be 
adjudged or held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as 
amended hereby, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 5. An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is governed 
by prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when the 
offense was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 

Section 6. That any person, firm or corporation violating any of the prov1s10ns or 
terms of this Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of 
Ordinances, as amended, and upon conviction in the municipal court shall be punished by a 
fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense, and each 
and every day such violation shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

Section 7. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City 
of Lucas, and it is accordingly so ordained. 

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 

COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 5th DAY OF JANUARY, 2023.

City of Lucas 
Ordinance# 2022-12-00963 (Change in Zoning- ±25.130 Acres North of Parker Road) 
Approved: January 5, 2023 



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr. 
(10-12-2022:TM) 

APPROVED: 

Jim Olk, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Erin Day, City Secretary 

City of Lucas 
Ordinance# 2022-12-00963 (Change in Zoning- ±25. 130 Acres North of Parker Road) 
Approved: January 5, 2023 



EXHIBIT "A" 

Property Description 

SITUATED in the Lewis P. Turner survey, abstract no. 901 and in the J. Gray 
survey, abstract no. 349, being a survey of the 12.576 acre tract described in a correction deed 
from Nelda Rae Owens and Myrna Marie Godier to 3R Land Properties, L.C., 
recorded as clerk's file no. 2022000078425 of the Official Public Records of Collin 
County, Texas and a part of the 12.64017 acre tract described in a deed from Phillip E. 
Kennedy and wife, Margaret Jean Kennedy, to 3R Land Properties LC, recorded in volume 
5024, page 1136 of the Collin County deed records, being described by metes and 
bounds as follows: 

BEGINNING at a 5/8-inch iron pin found at the northwest comer of said 12.64017 
acre tract and the northeast comer of the corrected plat of Kirkland Estates West recorded in 
volume 10, page 74 and volume A, page 244 of the Collin County plat records; 

THENCE North 88°55'1211 East, with the north line of said 12.64017 acre tract, 298.73 
feet to a 2.5- inch iron pipe found at the northeast comer of said 12.64017 acre tract and the 
northwest comer of said 12.576 acre tract; 

THENCE South 89°34'53 11 East, with the north line of said 12.576 acre tract, passing 
at 290.04 feet to a 3/4-inch iron pin found and continuing in all, 296.30 feet to a point at 
the northeast comer of said 12.576 acre tract; 

THENCE South 00°23'01" East, 1863.33 feet to a 1/2-inch iron pin set in the north right
of-way line of Parker Road (FM 2514), at the northeast comer of the 0.1715 acre tract recorded 
as clerk's file no. 20150922001201110; 

THENCE North 84°05'0611 West, with the north right-of-way line of said Parker Road 
and with the north line of said 0.1715 acre tract, passing at 298.10 feet, the northwest comer 
of said 0.1715 acre tract and the northeast comer of the 0.1458 acre tract 
recorded as clerk's file no. 20151125001484280, continuing with the north line of said 
0.1458 acre tract, in all 603.38 feet to an iron pin found with aluminum cap at the northwest 
comer of said 0.1458 acre tract; same being in the west line of said 12.64017 acre tract and the 
east line of said Kirkland Estates West; 
THENCE North 00°13'55 11 West, with the west line of said 12.64017 acre tract and the east 
line of said Kirkland Estates West, 1797.66 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING and containing 
25.130 acres. 

Exhibit "A" 
Page 1 
City of Lucas 



I 

�

�
I 
I 
I 

I 

I 
! 

EXHIBIT "B" 
Property Depiction 

ru•an-• UD1 ..,_ 

1.EllrNII 

......................... 
----� ....... -
............... 1 .. ... 

__ .. _ ... __.... ... ..,.._ 

....... ......_ ..... 

.......... ._ _,....,..,..,... 

:=::;
___.. ..................... ,,7 .,.. ............... . 

=::..=
--

ZONING EXHIBIT 
Z,130� 

_, ___ 
AB11UCNO.to1NClll'IMC 

.---,.�NQ.;Me 
- a,wc,,s 

C0U.»ICWNIT,1tlr4 
12»£.IWICDt'IIDII> 

WCOS.'IEU5?9002 
!1U1MY IIQE> IIHl-2032 



Item No. 04 City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

January 5, 2023 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 

Agenda Item Request 

Public Hearing to consider amendments to the Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvement 
Plan under which an Impact Fee may be amended for water and roadways within the City of Lucas. 
(Cancelled) 

Background Information 

At the City Council meeting on November 17, 2022, the City Council approved Resolution R2022-
11-00537 to set a public hearing date as part of the process to approve the amendments to the
Impact Fee Land Use Assumptions, Roadway Capital Improvement Plan, Water Capital
Improvement and/or 2022-2032 Impact Fee Update.

At the City Council meeting on December 1, 2022, the City Council recommended changes to the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan. Due to this, the scheduled public hearing is cancelled pending final 
review and approval of the Comprehensive Plan by the Planning and Zoning Commission on 
January 12, 2023, and by the City Council on January 19, 2023. 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

1. 2022-2032 Water and Roadway Impact Fee Updated Schedule

Budget/Financial Impact 

NA 

Recommendation  

NA 

Motion 

NA 



Birkhoff, Hendricks Carter, LLP

12/30/2022

Notes:

1 The Impact Fee Advisory Committee meets on the same day as the Planning and Zoning Commission (2nd Thursdays of the Month)

2 City Council Meets on the 1st and 3rd Thursday of the Month

City Staff/Consultant 

Meetings

Impact Fee Advisory 

Committee Meetings City Council Meeting Meeting/Action Agenda and Action Items Required

September 8, 2022 Staff Meeting

Impact Fee Update Kick-off Meeting with City Staff

   Agenda:

      a)   Service Areas

      b)  Impact Fee Land Use and Growth Assumptions

      c)  Capital Recover Project Data

      d)  Water, Sewer and Roadway Capital Improvement Plans

October 13, 2022 Staff Meeting Present Impact Fee Capital Improvement Plan and Preliminary Impact Fee 

Calculations

October 13, 2022
Impact Fee Advisory 

Meeting
Intial Meeting with Advisory Committee

Draft Review of Impact Fee Land Use and CIP

November 1, 2022 City Staff
Publish Impact Fee Advisory Meeting Notice and Agenda

(Sec. 395.055)

Advisory Committee Meeting (Sec. 395.056)

a)       Review of CIP Update

b)       Review of Impact Fee Updates
c)        Advisory Committee Recommendation Letter to City Council

November 17, 2022
City Council to set a Public Hearing on Amendments to Land Use 

Assumptions, Capital Improvement Plan, or Impact Fee (Sec. 395.053)

for   January 5, 2023

December 5, 2022
Notice of Public 

Hearing 

Deadline for Publication of Notice of Public Hearing on January 5, 2023 in 

local newspaper (Sec. 395.055; 395.044(b)

December 5, 2022
Final Impact Fee 

Update Report

Final Impact Fee Update  Report Published and made available for public 

review (Sec. 395.054)

December 8, 2022
Advisory Committee 

Recommendations If not completed at Nov. 10th Advisory Committee Meeting, last day for 

publication of written recommendation to City Council (Sec. 395.056)

City Council Public 

Hearing

Public Hearing on Amendments to Land Use Assumptions, Capital 

Improvement Plan, or Impact Fee

Possible Council 

Action

Approve, Reject or take no action on  Amendments to Land Use 

Assumptions, Capital Improvement Plan or Impact Fees (Sec. 395.057(a))

NOTE:  Council has 30-calendar days to take action

Possible Council 

Action

If Impact Fee Amendments are approved, adopt and ordinance, order or 

resolution approving the amendments to the Land Use Assumptions, 

Capital Improvement Plan (Sec. 395.057(b))

Possible Council 

Action

If council action on 01/05/2023, then 

Approve, Reject or Table Amendments to Land Use Assumptions, Capital 

Improvement Plan or Impact Fees (Sec. 395.057)

Possible Council 

Action

If Impact Fee Amendments are approved, adopt and ordinance, order or 

resolution approving the amendments to the Land Use Assumptions, 

Capital Improvement Plan (Sec. 395.057(b))

Possible Council 

Action

If no council action on 01/19/2023, then last council meeting to Approve, 

or Reject Amendments to Land Use Assumptions, Capital Improvement 

Plan or Impact Fees (Sec. 395.057)

Possible Council 

Action

If Impact Fee Amendments are approved, adopt and ordinance, order or 

resolution approving the amendments to the Land Use Assumptions, 

Capital Improvement Plan (Sec. 395.057(b))

City of Lucas, TX
2022-2032 Water and Roadway Impact Fee Update

Adoption Schedule

January 5, 2023

January 19, 2023

February 2, 2023

Impact Fee  Advisory 

Committee Meeting
November 10, 2022

POSTPONED BY CITY

J:\CLERICAL\Lucas\2022-102 Water Dist. System MP and Impact Fee Update\Impact Fee Update\Proposed Impact Fee Update Schedule.xlsxProposed Impact Fee Update Schedule.xlsx



Birkhoff, Hendricks Carter, LLP

12/30/2022

January 3, 2023 City Staff Publish Impact Fee Advisory Meeting Notice and Agenda

(Sec. 395.055)

Advisory Committee Meeting (Sec. 395.056)

a)       Review of Roadway CIP Update

b)       Review of Roadway Impact Fee Updates

c)        Advisory Committee Recommendation Letter to City Council

January 16, 2023 City Staff Finalize Impact Fee Update Report

January 19, 2023
City Council to set a Public Hearing on Amendments to Land Use 

Assumptions, Capital Improvement Plan, or Impact Fee (Sec. 395.053)

for   March 2, 2023

On or Before

February 2, 2023

February 2, 2023
Final Impact Fee 

Update Report

Final Impact Fee Update  Report Published and made available for public 

review (Sec. 395.054)

City Council Public 

Hearing

Public Hearing on Amendments to Land Use Assumptions, Capital 

Improvement Plan, or Impact Fee

Possible Council 

Action

Approve, Reject or take no action on  Amendments to Land Use 

Assumptions, Capital Improvement Plan or Impact Fees (Sec. 395.057(a))

NOTE:  Council has 30-calendar days to take action

Possible Council 

Action

If Impact Fee Amendments are approved, adopt and ordinance, order or 

resolution approving the amendments to the Land Use Assumptions, 

Capital Improvement Plan (Sec. 395.057(b))

Possible Council 

Action

If council action on 03/02/2023, then 

Approve, Reject or Table Amendments to Land Use Assumptions, Capital 

Improvement Plan or Impact Fees (Sec. 395.057)

Possible Council 

Action

If Impact Fee Amendments are approved, adopt and ordinance, order or 

resolution approving the amendments to the Land Use Assumptions, 

Capital Improvement Plan (Sec. 395.057(b))

Deadline for Publication of Notice of Public Hearing on March 2, 2023 in 

local newspaper (Sec. 395.055; 395.044(b)

March 16, 2023

January 12, 2023
Impact Fee  Advisory 

Committee Meeting

March 2, 2023

Notice of Public 

Hearing 

J:\CLERICAL\Lucas\2022-102 Water Dist. System MP and Impact Fee Update\Impact Fee Update\Proposed Impact Fee Update Schedule.xlsxProposed Impact Fee Update Schedule.xlsx



Item No. 05 City of Lucas
City Council Agenda Request

January 5, 2023 

Requester: City Secretary Erin Day

Agenda Item Request 

Consent Agenda: 

A. Approval of the minutes of the December 15, 2022 City Council meeting.

B. Approval of Amendment No. 1 to the Interlocal Agreement between Collin County and
the City of Lucas for Law Enforcement Services.

Background Information 

Agenda Item 5B: 

Amendment No. 1 to the Interlocal Agreement for Law Enforcement Services enhances the 
provision of law enforcement services within the City’s boundaries of Lucas by adding two 
additional full-time deputy positions together with the necessary patrol vehicles and equipment.

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

1. Minutes of the December 15, 2022 City Council meeting.
2. Amendment No. 1 to the Interlocal Agreement between Collin County and the City of

Lucas for Law Enforcement Services
3. Interlocal Agreement between Collin County and the City of Lucas for Law Enforcement

Services

Budget/Financial Impact 

B. Funding in the amount of $561,905 for additional law enforcement services was approved
in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 budget in line item 11-6999-326 (Law Enforcement).

Recommendation 

City staff recommends approval of the Consent Agenda.

Motion 

I make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.



1 | P a g e C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g
D e c e m b e r  1 5 ,  2 0 2 2

MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

December 15, 2022 | 6:30 PM 
Council Chambers 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 

City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Tim Johnson 
Councilmember Tim Baney 
Councilmember Phil Lawrence (remote) 

City Councilmembers Absent: 
Councilmember David Keer 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 

City Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke  
Public Works Director Scott Holden 
City Secretary Erin Day 
City Attorney Joe Gorfida 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
Contract Engineer Joe Grajewski  

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm. 

Citizen Input 

1. Citizen Input

There were no citizens wishing to address the City Council. 

Community Interest 

2. Items of Community Interest

Mayor Olk gave items of community interest including: recap of Holiday Donation Drive, recap of 
Country Christmas, Service Tree Nominations, and Community Waste Disposal procedures during 
the Christmas Holiday. 

Public Hearing 

3. Hold a Public Hearing to consider adopting Ordinance 2022-12-00963 approving the
rezoning request made by Sudhir Sakaria with 3R Land Properties L.C., property
owner, to rezone 4 parcels of land on the north side of Parker Road from Residential
R1.5 acres to Residential 1 acre, situated in the Lewis P. Turner Survey, Abstract No.
901, Tract 4, 2.280 acres and Tract 5, 3.9943 acres, and the John Gray Survey, Abstract
No. 349, Tract 6, 8.5 acres and Tract 7, 10.296 acres.

Mayor Olk convened the City Council into Executive Session seeking legal advice from the City 
Attorney, as authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, at 6:38 p.m. 

Mayor Olk reconvened the City Council into Open Session at 6:51 p.m. 



2 | P a g e C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g
D e c e m b e r  1 5 ,  2 0 2 2

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation including: background information 
on the request, location of the property, zoning depiction, proposed concept plan, and 
recommendations.  

Mayor Olk opened the Public Hearing at 6:53 p.m. 

The owner of the property, Sudhir Sakaria, spoke advising he is only asking for what the land is 
planned for on the Future Land Use Map, which is R1 (Residential 1 acre). 

Jack Dunaway, 2 Santa Fe Trail, spoke in opposition advising Collin County guidelines state on-site 
sewage facilities could cause pollution and may be a danger to public health, therefore platted or 
unplatted subdivisions using on-site sewage systems must have a usable area of 1.5 acres. Mayor Olk 
advised that is the guideline only if the property has a well. Mr. Dunaway advised the property has 
runoff and that the runoff will go into the creek which will feed into other water sources. 

Dawn Pemberton, 1 Chisolm Trail, spoke in opposition advising her property is across the street from 
the proposed rezoning request. She advised her property is 1.5 acres and she has a septic system, and 
even hers can be overloaded when there is heavy rain. She also advised her background is in real estate 
and she believes that smaller 1 acre lots will make the area more crowded and less attractive. She 
believes the values would be negatively impacted. 

Olivia Welkener, 12 Santa Fe Trail, spoke in opposition stating the sewage would be an issue and 
home values would go down. She also asked if the drainage is going to be appropriate for the area. 
She advised they already have an issue with drainage on their property. 

Josh Patterson, 10 Santa Fe Trail, also spoke in opposition. He asked if there has been any analysis on 
the drainage for the proposed property. He also asked if there has been an analysis on future revenue 
from a tax standpoint. Mayor Olk advised Mr. Paterson that he could get in touch with Development 
Services Director Joe Hilbourn for requirements on drainage, and that this Public Hearing does not 
cover revenue analysis because it is specifically for the zoning request. 

Mayor Olk advised Section 14.02.063 of the Code of Ordinances requires that for a decision made by 
the Planning and Zoning Commission to be overturned, it must be done so by a vote of 75 percent 
of the City Council, therefore no action could be taken without at least one more councilmember 
present. 

MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Olk, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, to continue 
the Public Hearing until the next City Council meeting on January 5, 2023 at 6:30 p.m. 
The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote, with Councilmembers Fisher and 
Keer absent.  

Consent Agenda 

4. Consent Agenda:

A. Approval of the minutes of the December 1, 2022 City Council meeting.

MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Baney, to 
approve the Consent Agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 
0 vote, with Councilmembers Fisher and Keer absent.  



3 | P a g e C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g
D e c e m b e r  1 5 ,  2 0 2 2

Regular Agenda 

5. Discuss the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) intersection improvement
project located at FM 1378 at FM 3286 (commonly referred to as the Bait Shop
Intersection).

Mayor Pro Tem Peele advised her concern is access into and out of the neighborhood by the Bait 
Shop and Lucas Road. She advised Public Works Director Scott Holden had made a request to 
Jennifer Vorster with TxDOT for some information on what TxDOT would be willing to do to help 
with the issues in that area. Mayor Pro Tem Peele advised TxDOT is not in favor of a left-hand turn 
into or out of Cedar Bend Trail because they believe that it would shorten the available storage in the 
turn lane, causing traffic to stack. Mayor Pro Tem Peele advised she is questioning them because the 
biggest problem is traffic being heaviest in the morning going west and in the evening going east. 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele believes that even if traffic stacks up, it is not as big of a concern as cutting off 
access to the neighborhood. Mayor Pro Tem Peele asked Mr. Holden to impress upon TxDOT to be 
accommodating to the people who live in that area not having access in or out. She also advised 
Edgefield Lane is also a significant traffic concern with people trying to enter or exit. She advised 
TxDOT’s offer was to widen the entrance to Edgefield Lane. The City Council discussed the proposed 
roadway changes from TxDOT and gave direction to Mr. Holden to ask TxDOT for more 
clarification and to bring back further information at a future City Council meeting date. 

MOTION: There was no motion needed for this item. 

Executive Agenda 

6. Executive Session: As authorized by Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code,
the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session to deliberate the
appointment of a member to the Board of Adjustment. This meeting is closed to the
public as provided in the Texas Government Code.

The City Council adjourned into Executive Session at 7:23 p.m. 

7. Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the
Executive Session.

The City Council reconvened into Regular Session at 7:34 p.m. 

MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember 
Lawrence, to appoint Frank Hise to the Board of Adjustment as Alternate 1 for a term 
beginning on January 1, 2023 and expiring on December 31, 2024. The motion passed 
unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote, with Councilmembers Fisher and Keer absent. 

9. Adjournment.

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Johnson, seconded by Councilmember 
Lawrence, to adjourn the meeting at 7:35 pm. The motion passed unanimously by 
a 5 to 0 vote, with Councilmembers Fisher and Keer absent.  



4 | P a g e C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g
D e c e m b e r  1 5 ,  2 0 2 2

APPROVED: ATTEST:

Mayor Jim Olk Erin Day, City Secretary 



1 

Amendment No. 1 to 
Interlocal Agreement between Collin County and 
the City of Lucas for Law-Enforcement Services 

1. Current Agreement. Under Commissioners Court Order No. 2021-898-09-20, Collin County
and the City of Lucas entered an interlocal agreement for the County to provide two deputy sheriffs
to patrol and provide law-enforcement services in the City of Lucas (the current agreement). See
Interlocal Cooperation Act, Texas Gov’t Code, Chapter 791.

2. Additional Deputy Sheriffs. In addition to the deputy sheriffs the County provides under the
current agreement, the County will provide two additional peace officers to provide patrol services
within the City’s boundaries for the officers’ full-time work or duty schedules.

3. Vehicles. The County and the City will confer on whether the County will dedicate a patrol
vehicle or two to the additional deputies. Relevant factors include the number of deputies and
vehicles the County has assigned to the City at the time of the decision, shift days and times, and
whether the deputies use or should use take-home or pool vehicles. The City will have the same
rights and obligations with respect to such additional vehicles as it has under the current agreement.

4. Term. This amendment will remain effective as long as the current agreement remains effective.

5. Additional Compensation. The City’s obligation to pay the County fair compensation for these
services will extend to the additional deputies and any vehicles, which the County provides under
this amendment, consistent with the current agreement. See Gov’t Code, § 791.011(e).

6. Liquidated Damages. To fulfill its obligation to dedicate patrol deputies to work inside the
City’s boundaries, the County will make a substantial investment by hiring and training new
deputy sheriffs to provide those services or by reassigning current deputy sheriffs to provide the
services and hiring new deputy sheriffs to backfill. The compensation for these new deputy sheriffs
may fall within the scope of SB 23, 87th Legislature, Reg. Sess. 2021 (Local Gov’t Code,
Chapter 120). If the City terminates the agreement or this amendment or otherwise reduces the
number of deputy sheriffs patrolling within its borders (including by materially breaching and
forcing the County to terminate), then the City will pay the County liquidated damages. Liquidated
damages will equal the total compensation (salary and benefits) for each deputy sheriff removed
from patrolling in the City multiplied by three (approximately three years of compensation). At
FY23 levels (including 9 months of a 5% increase, which will take effect just after January 1,
2023), this amount could be approximately $1.2 million, if all four were removed (full
compensation of $68,422 + $29,314 (for a deputy sheriff (556) on 84-hour schedule) = $97,736 x
4 deputies x 3 years = $1,172,832). This calculation is a reasonable forecast of just compensation
in light of the County’s investment and its lessened authority to adjust its budget under SB 23
(87(R)).

7. Additional Definitions. A “peace officer” means a deputy sheriff licensed under Chapter 1701,
Occupations Code, with a commission or appointment carried by the Sheriff’s Office.



2 

“To provide patrol services” includes all reasonably necessary equipment and training for a peace 
officer to provide patrol services, including a patrol vehicle. 

“Full-time work or duty schedule” means an officer’s complete work schedule under the FLSA 
before eligibility for overtime or comp time under 29 CFR Part 553, less the reductions in this duty 
time under Collin County’s personal-time-off or other leave policies, or short periods away from 
duty for attending mandatory training, answering emergency calls, or assisting other peace officers 
as required. 

8. Additional Documents. In addition to this amendment, the County and the City will adopt this
amendment by its own form of order, resolution, or ratification within the meaning of
Section 791.011(d), Gov’t Code.

Agreed to: 

Collin County 

_____________________________________ 
Judge Chris Hill   Date 
2300 Bloomdale Road 
McKinney, TX 75071 

City of Lucas 

____________________________________ 
Name  Title   Date 
City of Lucas 
665 Country Club Road 
Lucas, TX 77002 



State of Texas 

Collin County 

Commissioners Court 

§ 

§ 

§ 

Court Order 

2021-898-09-20 

An order of the Collin County Commissioners Court approving an interlocal agreement. 

The Collin County Commissioners Court hereby approves an inter local agreement for Law Enforcement
Services (Agreement No. 2021-375) with the City of Lucas, as detailed in the attached documentation.

A motion was made, seconded, and carried by a majority of the court members in attendance during a regular
session on Monday, September 20, 2021.

.... 

Chris Hill, County Judge Darrell Hale, Commissioner, Pct 3

Susan Fletcher, Commissioner, Pct 1

�4i��· CherylWiams, Commissioner, Pct 2











officials and their attorneys and experts with reasonable viewing of any relevant recordings

including those made by in-vehicle or body-worn cameras----consistent with investigative, law

enforcement, or criminal- or civil-defense requirements, including those in Section 1701.660 of 

the Occupations Code. The Sheriff alone will make all decisions about public or other release of 

records, including decisions under Sections 1701.660-1701.663, Occupations Code, or the 

Public Information Act, Texas Gov't Code, Chapter 552. 

The County alone will retain all body-worn-camera property at this agreement's end. 

3.12 Public Information Act Requests. If the County receives a request under the Public 
Information Act, Chapter 552, Gov't Code, that relates to the City of Lucas, the County will notify 

the City of Lucas in accordance with requirements under Section 552.305, Gov't Code. 

4. The Obligations of the City of Lucas

4.1 Payments. The City of Lucas will pay the County the reimbursement amount set out in 

sections 4.2 and 4.3 each contract year. The City of Lucas may pay the amount in four quarterly 

installments or in fewer payments. 

4.2 Amount 

The amount of the City of Lucas's annual payments is the amount necessary to fairly 

compensate-reimburse-the County for the cost of providing the services under this agreement 

for the contract year. See Gov't Code, § 791.01 l(e). The County's costs include the annual 
compensation of each dedicated patrol deputy (salary and benefits), the cost of a deputy's 
equipment, and the cost of a patrol SUV (e.g., Explorer) or patrol pickup (e.g., F-150 Responder) 

with equipment, and each vehicle's annual fuel and maintenance. The County's costs will not 

include indirect costs. The County will document all reimbursable costs each contract year. 

For calculating a dedicated patrol deputy's annual compensation, the County's fiscal year is from 

October 1 to September 30. But the Commissioners Court may adjust the compensation of county 
employees after January 1 each year. If so, the County will adjust the City of Lucas's payment 

amount for the portion of the contract year to which the compensation adjustment applies. 

The City of Lucas will reimburse the County for the full cost of a dedicated patrol vehicle that the 
Sheriffs Office puts into service within the City in that contract year. If the Sheriff's Office first 

puts the dedicated patrol vehicle in service at a time when the City of Lucas cannot adjust its 

budget and meet its obligation to pay for the vehicle in that contract year, then the City of Lucas 

may postpone paying for the vehicle to the City's next budget year. The estimated costs of the 
deputies and vehicles, with maintenance and fuel, for fiscal year 2022 include: 

Deputy Salaries and Benefits (two positions) $215,888 

Vehicle Maintenance and Insurance (two patrol vehicles) $10,500 

Total Estimated Costs for FY 22 $226,388 

4 















Item No. 06 City of Lucas
City Council Agenda Request

January 5, 2023
Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn

Agenda Item Request 

Consider adopting Ordinance 2023-01-00964 amending the City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 
8, Offenses and Nuisances, Article 8.02 Junked Vehicles. 

Background Information 

The City Attorney has reviewed Chapter 8, Offenses and Nuisances, Article 8.02 Junked Vehicles
of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances for both compliance with state law and the ability to 
prosecute offenses. The City Attorney recommends the proposed changes outlined in the attached 
redline version of the ordinance. 

The proposed changes included in the ordinance are:
Definitions of junked vehicles
Addition of language related to junked aircrafts and watercrafts
Definition of allowable time for junked vehicles to remain on public or private property
Designation of City Manager or his/her designee as the determiner of a nuisance violation
related to a junked vehicle
Enforcement process through the Municipal Court
Process for giving notice of removal of the junked vehicle
Statement of offense

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

1. Redline Version of Proposed Changes to Chapter 8, Offenses and Nuisances, Article 8.02
Junked Vehicles

2. Ordinance 2023-01-00964 Amending Code of Ordinances Chapter 8, Offenses and
Nuisances, Article 8.02 Junked Vehicles

Budget/Financial Impact 

NA

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed changes to Chapter 8, Offenses and Nuisances, 
Article 8.02 Junked Vehicles.

Motion 

I make a motion to adopt Ordinance 2023-01-00964 amending the City’s Code of 
Ordinances, Chapter 8, Offenses and Nuisances, Article 8.02 Junked Vehicles.



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-01-00964 (DRAFT) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 8 TITLED 
"OFFENSES AND NUISANCES" BY AMENDING ARTICLE 8.02 
TITLED “JUNKED VEHICLES” TO UPDATE REFERENCES TO 
ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITIES AND OTHER MINOR CHANGES; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED TWO 
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($200.00); AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. That the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances is amended by amending Chapter 8 
titled “Offenses and Nuisances”, by amending Article 8.02 titled “Junked Vehicles”, to read as 
follows: 

Chapter 8. OFFENSES AND NUISANCES 

ARTICLE 8.02.  JUNKED VEHICLES 

§ 8.02.001. Definitions. 

Junked motor vehicle.  A vehicle that is subject to registration under the Texas 
Transportation Code Chapter 501, as amended and is self-propelled and:  

(1) Does not have lawfully attached to it:

(a) an unexpired/invalid license plate; or

(b) a valid motor vehicle inspection certificate; and

(2) Is:

(a) Wrecked, dismantled, or partially dismantled, or discarded; or

(b) Inoperable and has remained inoperable for more than:

i. 72 consecutive hours, if the vehicle is on public property; or

ii. 30 consecutive days, if the vehicle is on private property.

Junked aircraft.  An aircraft that is self-propelled and: 



2 

(1) Does not have lawfully printed on the aircraft an unexpired federal aircraft
identification number registered under the Federal Aviation Administration aircraft
registration regulations in 14 C.F.R. Part 47; and

(2) Is:

a. Wrecked, dismantled, or partially dismantled, or discarded; or

b. Inoperable and has remained inoperable for more than:

i. 72 consecutive hours, if the vehicle is on public property; or

ii. 30 consecutive days, if the vehicle is on private property

Junked watercraft.  A watercraft that is self-propelled and: 

(1) Does not have lawfully on board an unexpired certificate number; and

(2) Is not a watercraft described by Section 31.055, Texas Parks and Wildlife Code; and

(3) Is:

(a) Wrecked, dismantled, or partially dismantled, or discarded; or

(b) Inoperable and has remained inoperable for more than:

i. 72 consecutive hours, if the vehicle is on public property; or

ii. 30 consecutive days, if the vehicle is on private property

§8.02.002. Declaration of nuisance.

a) A junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft, or junked watercraft, including a any part
thereof, that is located in a place where it is visible at any time of the year from a public
place or public right-of-way is detrimental to the safety and welfare of the public, tends to
reduce the value of private property, invites vandalism, creates a fire hazard, is an
attractive nuisance creating a hazard to the health and safety of minors, produces urban
blight adverse to the maintenance and continuing development of the city, and is hereby
declared a public nuisance.

b) Junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft, or junked watercraft, including any part thereof,
may be referred to collectively as “nuisance vehicles.”

§8.02.003.  Notice.



3 

a) After a determination is made by the City Manager or his/her designee, or other
appropriate city employee (each such person being a regularly salaried, full-time
employee of the city) that a particular vehicle is a nuisance vehicle there shall be
provided not less than ten (10) days’ written notice of the nature of the nuisance, which
notice must be personally delivered or mailed by certified mail with a five-day return
requested to:

(1) The last known registered owner of the nuisance vehicle;

(2) Each lienholder of record of the nuisance vehicle; and

(3) The owner or occupant of:

i. The property on which the nuisance vehicle is located; or

ii. If the nuisance vehicle is located on a public right-of-way, the property
adjacent to the right-of-way.

b) The notice must state that:

(1) The nuisance vehicle must be abated and removed not later than the tenth (10th) day
after the date on which the notice was personally delivered or mailed; and

(2) Any request for a hearing must be made before that ten-day (10) period expires.

c) If the post office address of the last known registered owner of the nuisance vehicle is
unknown, notice may be placed on the nuisance vehicle or, if the owner is located,
personally delivered.

d) If the notice is returned undelivered, action to abate the nuisance vehicle shall be
continued to a date not earlier than the 11th day after the date of the return.

§8.02.04.  Hearing.

a) If a hearing is requested by a person to whom notice is required to be sent in accordance
with section 8.02.003, the hearing shall be held not earlier than the eleventh (11th) day
after the date of service of the notice.

(1) A request for a hearing shall be made in writing to the city secretary.

(2) The city secretary shall set a date and time for the hearing before the city council and
shall notify the requestor, and all persons entitled to notice under section 8.02.003, of
the date and time for such hearing and the location of the hearing.



4 

(3) If the address of persons entitled to notice under section 8.02.003 is not available,
such notice may be otherwise delivered or posted in accordance with section
8.02.003.

(4) The city council shall hear the matter at the location, date and time noticed, unless
changed by agreement or necessity with notice to the requestor, and shall, based on
the information presented by the city representative and the requestor (or any other
person with a legal or equitable interest in the matter) at the hearing, make a
determination of whether the vehicle or vehicle part is a junked motor vehicle, junked
aircraft, or junked watercraft and public nuisance under this article.

(5) It is presumed that the junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft, or junked watercraft or
any part thereof is inoperable unless demonstrated otherwise by the owner.

(6) If the city council so finds, it shall enter an order making such finding, ordering the
owner of the nuisance vehicle or part thereof, or owner or occupant of the private
premises where the nuisance vehicle or part thereof is located, as the case may be, to
abate the public nuisance by removing or causing the removal of the same and
directing that if such public nuisance is not abated within ten (10) days of the order
that the City Manager or his/her designee, or other appropriate city employee, remove
or cause to be removed the nuisance vehicle, or part thereof from the public or private
property. The order shall be in writing and must include, if available at the location of
the nuisance, the following:

i. Vehicle description;
ii. Vehicle identification number; and

iii. License plate number.

(7) A copy of the order shall be mailed by certified mail to all known persons entitled to
notice under section 8.02.003, or otherwise provided or posted in accordance with
section 8.02.003 if the address is unknown.

b) As an alternative to the enforcement process described above, if a nuisance vehicle or
part thereof is not removed and abated within the prescribed time period provided in the
notice under §8.02.003, the municipal court judge of the city may hold a public hearing
on the abatement and removal of the nuisance vehicle or part thereof. At the hearing, the
municipal court judge shall hear and consider all relevant evidence, objections or protests
and shall receive testimony from owners, witnesses, city personnel and interested persons
relative to such alleged public nuisance. The hearing may be continued from time to time.

(1) At the hearing, the junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft or junked watercraft is
presumed, unless demonstrated otherwise by the owner, to be inoperable.

(2) Following the hearing, the municipal court judge shall consider all evidence and
determine whether the junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft or junked watercraft or
any part thereof, constitutes a public nuisance as alleged. If the municipal court judge



5 

finds that a public nuisance does exist and that there is sufficient cause to abate the 
nuisance, and that the notice requirements provided in this Article have been met, the 
municipal court judge shall make a written order setting forth the judge's findings and 
ordering that the nuisance be abated.  

(3) If the information is available at the location of the nuisance, the order requiring
removal of the nuisance must include the vehicle's:

i. Vehicle Description;
ii. Vehicle identification number; and

iii. License plate number.

(4) In addition, the order must state that the nuisance vehicle or part thereof will be
disposed of in accordance with the Texas Transportation Code.

(5) The relocation of a nuisance vehicle or part thereof to another location within the
corporate limits of the city after a proceeding for the abatement and removal of the
public nuisance has commenced has no effect on the proceeding if the nuisance
vehicle or part thereof constitutes a public nuisance at the new location.

§ 8.02.005.  Entry onto premises for enforcement of article.

Pursuant to section 683.074(e) of the Transportation Code, the City Manager or his/her 
authorized agent may enter private property to examine a public nuisance, to obtain information 
to identify the nuisance, and to remove or direct the removal of the nuisance in accordance with 
this article. 

§ 8.02.006.  Removal of nuisance.

a) Removal of the nuisance shall be carried out, or caused to be carried out, by the City
Manager or his/her authorized agent, in accordance with this article, and the orders issued
hereunder.

b) The City Manager or other authorized city official shall give notice to the Texas
Department of Transportation, Texas Parks and Wildlife Department or the Federal
Aviation Administration, as applicable, identifying the junked motor vehicle, junked
aircraft or junked watercraft or vehicle part thereof not later than the fifth (5th) day after
the date of removal. 

c) A junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft or junked watercraft or part thereof may not be
reconstructed or made operable after it is removed.

d) Nothing herein shall be construed to affect laws or regulations permitting the immediate
removal of a motor vehicle or part left on public property which constitutes an
obstruction to traffic or a danger to the traveling public.



6 

§ 8.02.007.  Disposal.

The City Manager, or his/her authorized agent(s), may dispose of or cause the disposal of the 
junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft, junked watercraft or any part thereof by removal to a scrap 
yard, a motor vehicle demolisher, or a suitable site operated by a county or a municipality, or as 
otherwise provided by chapter 683, subchapter E of the Transportation Code, or amendments or 
recodifications thereof. 

§ 8.02.008.  Offense.

a) A person commits an offense when he or she maintains a junked motor vehicle, junked
aircraft, or junked watercraft, or any part thereof, in a manner declared a public nuisance.
Such an offense is a misdemeanor punishable by a fine not to exceed $200 in accordance
with the Texas Transportation Code §683.073 (b).

b) It is unlawful for a person to cause of permit a junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft,
junked watercraft, of any part thereof to be placed or to remain on any public property or
public right-of-way.

c) A vehicle that remains in violation of this section for a period of more than 48 hours
constitutes an abandoned motor vehicle and may be dealt with under processes defined
by state law for removal of abandoned motor vehicles.

d) It is unlawful for a person that owns or controls any real property to maintain, allow,
cause or permit a nuisance vehicle to be placed or to remain on the property.

e) It is unlawful for a person to maintain, allow, cause or permit a nuisance vehicle to be
placed or to remain on real property without the permission of the owner of the property.

f) In accordance with Section 683.073(c) of the Transportation Code the court shall order
abatement and removal of the nuisance on conviction.

§ 8.02.009. Exemptions.

a) This article shall not apply to a vehicle or vehicle part that is:

1. Completely enclosed in a building in a lawful manner and is not visible from the
street or other public or private property; or

2. Stored or parked in a lawful manner on private property in connection with the
business of a licensed vehicle dealer or junkyard, or that is an antique or special
interest vehicle stored by a motor vehicle collector on the collector's property, if
the vehicle or part and the outdoor storage area, if any, are:

i. Maintained in an orderly manner;



7 

ii. Not a health hazard; and

iii. Screened from ordinary public view by appropriate means, including a
fence, rapidly growing trees, or shrubbery.

b) As used in this section, words and terms shall be defined as follows:

1. Antique vehicle. A passenger car or truck that is at least 25 years old.

2. Motor vehicle collector. A person who:

i. Owns one or more antique or special interest vehicles; and

ii. Acquires, collects, or disposes of an antique or special interest vehicle or
vehicle parts for personal use to restore and preserve an antique or special
interest vehicle for historic interest.

3. Special interest vehicle. A motor vehicle of any age that has not been changed
from original manufacturer’s specifications and, because of its historic interest, is
being preserved by a hobbyist.

SECTION 2. To the extent of any irreconcilable conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance 
and other ordinances of the City of Lucas and which are not expressly amended by this 
Ordinance, the provision of this Ordinance shall remain be controlling. 

SECTION 3. That should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section 
of this Ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, the same shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance or the City of Lucas Code of 
Ordinances, as amended hereby, which shall remain in full force and effect.   

SECTION 4. An offense committed before the effective date of this Ordinance is governed by 
prior law and the provisions of the Ordinances of the City of Lucas, as amended, in effect when 
the offense was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose.   

SECTION 5. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained.  

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS ____ DAY OF ________________, 2022. 



8 

Jim Olk, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Erin Day, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney 
(12-7-2022: TM 132711/132712) 

APPROVED: 



City of Lucas
Ordinance # 2023-01-00964 Amending Chapter 8, Article 8.02 Offenses and Nuisances
Approved: January 5, 2023

ORDINANCE # 2023-01-00964 
[Amending Code of Ordinances, Chapter 8, Article 8.02]

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 8 TITLED
"OFFENSES AND NUISANCES" BY AMENDING ARTICLE 8.02 TITLED 
“JUNKED VEHICLES” TO UPDATE REFERENCES TO 
ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITIES AND OTHER MINOR CHANGES; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED TWO 
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($200.00); AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LUCAS, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances is amended by amending Chapter 8 titled 
“Offenses and Nuisances”, by amending Article 8.02 titled “Junked Vehicles”, to read as follows:

Chapter 8. OFFENSES AND NUISANCES

ARTICLE 8.02.  JUNKED VEHICLES

§ 8.02.001. Definitions. 

Junked motor vehicle.  A vehicle that is subject to registration under the Texas 
Transportation Code Chapter 501, as amended and is self-propelled and: 

(1) Does not have lawfully attached to it:

(a) an unexpired/valid license plate; or

(b) a valid motor vehicle registration certificate; and

(2) Is:

(a) Wrecked, dismantled, or partially dismantled, or discarded; or

(b) Inoperable and has remained inoperable for more than:

i. 72 consecutive hours, if the vehicle is on public property; or



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2023-01-00964 Amending Chapter 8, Article 8.02 Offenses and Nuisances 
Approved: January 5, 2023 

ii. 30 consecutive days, if the vehicle is on private property.

Junked aircraft.  An aircraft that is self-propelled and: 

(1) Does not have lawfully printed on the aircraft an unexpired federal aircraft
identification number registered under the Federal Aviation Administration aircraft
registration regulations in 14 C.F.R. Part 47; and

(2) Is:

a. Wrecked, dismantled, or partially dismantled, or discarded; or

b. Inoperable and has remained inoperable for more than:

i. 72 consecutive hours, if the vehicle is on public property; or

ii. 30 consecutive days, if the vehicle is on private property

Junked watercraft.  A watercraft that is self-propelled and: 

(1) Does not have lawfully on board an unexpired certificate number; and

(2) Is not a watercraft described by Section 31.055, Texas Parks and Wildlife Code; and

(3) Is:

(a) Wrecked, dismantled, or partially dismantled, or discarded; or

(b) Inoperable and has remained inoperable for more than:

i. 72 consecutive hours, if the vehicle is on public property; or

ii. 30 consecutive days, if the vehicle is on private property

§8.02.002. Declaration of nuisance.

a) A junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft, or junked watercraft, including a any part thereof,
that is located in a place where it is visible at any time of the year from a public place or
public right-of-way is detrimental to the safety and welfare of the public, tends to reduce
the value of private property, invites vandalism, creates a fire hazard, is an attractive
nuisance creating a hazard to the health and safety of minors, produces urban blight adverse
to the maintenance and continuing development of the city, and is hereby declared a public
nuisance.



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2023-01-00964 Amending Chapter 8, Article 8.02 Offenses and Nuisances 
Approved: January 5, 2023 

b) Junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft, or junked watercraft, including any part thereof, may
be referred to collectively as “nuisance vehicles.”

§8.02.003.  Notice.

a) After a determination is made by the City Manager or his/her designee, or other appropriate
city employee (each such person being a regularly salaried, full-time employee of the city)
that a particular vehicle is nuisance vehicle there shall be provided not less than ten (10)
days’ written notice of the nature of the nuisance, which notice must be personally
delivered or mailed by certified mail with a five-day return requested to:

(1) The last known registered owner of the nuisance vehicle;

(2) Each lienholder of record of the nuisance vehicle; and

(3) The owner or occupant of:

i. The property on which the nuisance vehicle is located; or

ii. If the nuisance vehicle is located on a public right-of-way, the property
adjacent to the right-of-way.

b) The notice must state that:

(1) The nuisance vehicle must be abated and removed not later than the tenth (10th) day
after the date on which the notice was personally delivered or mailed; and

(2) Any request for a hearing must be made before that ten-day (10) period expires.

c) If the post office address of the last known registered owner of the nuisance vehicle is
unknown, notice may be placed on the nuisance vehicle or, if the owner is located,
personally delivered.

d) If the notice is returned undelivered, action to abate the nuisance vehicle shall be continued
to a date not earlier than the 11th day after the date of the return.

§8.02.04.  Hearing.

a) If a hearing is requested by a person to whom notice is required to be sent in accordance
with section 8.02.003, the hearing shall be held not earlier than the eleventh (11th) day
after the date of service of the notice.

(1) A request for a hearing shall be made in writing to the city secretary.



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2023-01-00964 Amending Chapter 8, Article 8.02 Offenses and Nuisances 
Approved: January 5, 2023 

(2) The city secretary shall set a date and time for the hearing before the city council and
shall notify the requestor, and all persons entitled to notice under section 8.02.003, of
the date and time for such hearing and the location of the hearing.

(3) If the address of persons entitled to notice under section 8.02.003 is not available, such
notice may be otherwise delivered or posted in accordance with section 8.02.003.

(4) The city council shall hear the matter at the location, date and time noticed, unless
changed by agreement or necessity with notice to the requestor, and shall, based on the
information presented by the city representative and the requestor (or any other person
with a legal or equitable interest in the matter) at the hearing, make a determination of
whether the vehicle or vehicle part is a junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft, or junked
watercraft and public nuisance under this article.

(5) It is presumed that the junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft, or junked watercraft or
any part thereof is inoperable unless demonstrated otherwise by the owner.

(6) If the city council so finds, it shall enter an order making such finding, ordering the
owner of the nuisance vehicle or part thereof, or owner or occupant of the private
premises where the nuisance vehicle or part thereof is located, as the case may be, to
abate the public nuisance by removing or causing the removal of the same and directing
that if such public nuisance is not abated within ten (10) days of the order that the City
Manager or his/her designee, or other appropriate city employee, remove or cause to
be removed the nuisance vehicle, or part thereof from the public or private property.
The order shall be in writing and must include, if available at the location of the
nuisance, the following:

i. Vehicle description;
ii. Vehicle identification number; and

iii. License plate number.

(7) A copy of the order shall be mailed by certified mail to all known persons entitled to
notice under section 8.02.003, or otherwise provided or posted in accordance with
section 8.02.003 if the address is unknown.

b) As an alternative to the enforcement process described above, if a nuisance vehicle or part
thereof is not removed and abated within the prescribed time period provided in the notice
under §8.02.003, the municipal court judge of the city may hold a public hearing on the
abatement and removal of the nuisance vehicle or part thereof. At the hearing, the
municipal court judge shall hear and consider all relevant evidence, objections or protests
and shall receive testimony from owners, witnesses, city personnel and interested persons
relative to such alleged public nuisance. The hearing may be continued from time to time.

(1) At the hearing, the junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft or junked watercraft is
presumed, unless demonstrated otherwise by the owner, to be inoperable.



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2023-01-00964 Amending Chapter 8, Article 8.02 Offenses and Nuisances 
Approved: January 5, 2023 

(2) Following the hearing, the municipal court judge shall consider all evidence and
determine whether the junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft or junked watercraft or
any part thereof, constitutes a public nuisance as alleged. If the municipal court judge
finds that a public nuisance does exist and that there is sufficient cause to abate the
nuisance, and that the notice requirements provided in this Article have been met, the
municipal court judge shall make a written order setting forth the judge's findings and
ordering that the nuisance be abated.

(3) If the information is available at the location of the nuisance, the order requiring
removal of the nuisance must include the vehicle's:

i. Vehicle Description;
ii. Vehicle identification number; and

iii. License plate number.

(4) In addition, the order must state that the nuisance vehicle or part thereof will be
disposed of in accordance with the Texas Transportation Code.

(5) The relocation of a nuisance vehicle or part thereof to another location within the
corporate limits of the city after a proceeding for the abatement and removal of the
public nuisance has commenced has no effect on the proceeding if the nuisance vehicle
or part thereof constitutes a public nuisance at the new location.

§ 8.02.005.  Entry onto premises for enforcement of article.

Pursuant to section 683.074(e) of the Transportation Code, the City Manager or his/her authorized 
agent may enter private property to examine a public nuisance, to obtain information to identify 
the nuisance, and to remove or direct the removal of the nuisance in accordance with this article. 

§ 8.02.006.  Removal of nuisance.

a) Removal of the nuisance shall be carried out, or caused to be carried out, by the City
Manager or his/her authorized agent, in accordance with this article, and the orders issued
hereunder.

b) The City Manager or other authorized city official shall give notice to the Texas
Department of Transportation, Texas Parks and Wildlife Department or the Federal
Aviation Administration, as applicable, identifying the junked motor vehicle, junked
aircraft or junked watercraft or vehicle part thereof not later than the fifth (5th) day after
the date of removal. 

c) A junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft or junked watercraft or part thereof may not be
reconstructed or made operable after it is removed.



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2023-01-00964 Amending Chapter 8, Article 8.02 Offenses and Nuisances 
Approved: January 5, 2023 

d) Nothing herein shall be construed to affect laws or regulations permitting the immediate
removal of a motor vehicle or part left on public property which constitutes an obstruction
to traffic or a danger to the traveling public.

§ 8.02.007.  Disposal.

The City Manager, or his/her authorized agent(s), may dispose of or cause the disposal of the 
junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft, junked watercraft or any part thereof by removal to a scrap 
yard, a motor vehicle demolisher, or a suitable site operated by a county or a municipality, or as 
otherwise provided by chapter 683, subchapter E of the Transportation Code, or amendments or 
recodifications thereof. 

§ 8.02.008.  Offense.

a) A person commits an offense when he or she maintains a junked motor vehicle, junked
aircraft, or junked watercraft, or any part thereof, in a manner declared a public nuisance.
Such an offense is a misdemeanor punishable by a fine not to exceed $200 in accordance
with the Texas Transportation Code §683.073 (b).

b) It is unlawful for a person to cause of permit a junked motor vehicle, junked aircraft, junked
watercraft, of any part thereof to be placed or to remain on any public property or public
right-of-way.

c) A vehicle that remains in violation of this section for a period of more than 48 hours
constitutes an abandoned motor vehicle and may be dealt with under processes defined by
state law for removal of abandoned motor vehicles.

d) It is unlawful for a person that owns or controls any real property to maintain, allow, cause
or permit a nuisance vehicle to be placed or to remain on the property.

e) It is unlawful for a person to maintain, allow, cause or permit a nuisance vehicle to be
placed or to remain on real property without the permission of the owner of the property.

f) In accordance with Section 683.073(c) of the Transportation Code the court shall order
abatement and removal of the nuisance on conviction.

§ 8.02.009. Exemptions.

a) This article shall not apply to a vehicle or vehicle part that is:

1. Completely enclosed in a building in a lawful manner and is not visible from the
street or other public or private property; or

2. Stored or parked in a lawful manner on private property in connection with the
business of a licensed vehicle dealer or junkyard, or that is an antique or special



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2023-01-00964 Amending Chapter 8, Article 8.02 Offenses and Nuisances 
Approved: January 5, 2023 

interest vehicle stored by a motor vehicle collector on the collector's property, if the 
vehicle or part and the outdoor storage area, if any, are:  

i. Maintained in an orderly manner;

ii. Not a health hazard; and

iii. Screened from ordinary public view by appropriate means, including a
fence, rapidly growing trees, or shrubbery.

b) As used in this section, words and terms shall be defined as follows:

1. Antique vehicle. A passenger car or truck that is at least 25 years old.

2. Motor vehicle collector. A person who:

i. Owns one or more antique or special interest vehicles; and

ii. Acquires, collects, or disposes of an antique or special interest vehicle or
vehicle parts for personal use to restore and preserve an antique or special
interest vehicle for historic interest.

3. Special interest vehicle. A motor vehicle of any age that has not been changed from
original manufacturer’s specifications and, because of its historic interest, is being
preserved by a hobbyist.

SECTION 2. To the extent of any irreconcilable conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance 
and other ordinances of the City of Lucas and which are not expressly amended by this Ordinance, 
the provision of this Ordinance shall remain be controlling. 

SECTION 3. That should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section 
of this Ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, the same shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance or the City of Lucas Code of 
Ordinances, as amended hereby, which shall remain in full force and effect.   

SECTION 4. An offense committed before the effective date of this Ordinance is governed by 
prior law and the provisions of the Ordinances of the City of Lucas, as amended, in effect when 
the offense was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose.   

SECTION 5. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained.  

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 5th DAY OF JANUARY, 2023. 



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2023-01-00964 Amending Chapter 8, Article 8.02 Offenses and Nuisances 
Approved: January 5, 2023 

APPROVED: 

Jim Olk, Mayor 

    ATTEST: 

     Erin Day, City Secretary 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney 
(12-7-2022: TM 132712/132930) 



Item No. 07 City of Lucas
Council Agenda Request

January 5, 2023 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk
Public Works Director Scott Holden, PE

Agenda Item Request 

Discuss the West Lucas Road Reconstruction Project regarding the impacts of the alternative 
design and provide direction to the City Manager.

Background Information 

The City of Lucas obtained the services of BCC Engineering, LLC for the West Lucas Road 
Reconstruction Project to transform the West Lucas Road (from Angel Parkway to Country Club 
Road) into a four-lane divided roadway. The City evaluated the use of a drainage easement on the 
south side and it was determined that access to this drainage easement is challenging. The 
functionality of the drainage system associated with this project is a priority.

During the City Council meeting on May 19, 2022, Christopher Meszler with BCC Engineering, 
LLC discussed alternative designs for drainage on the West Lucas Road Reconstruction Project 
with the City Council. Changes to the plan included moving drainage from the Walmart detention 
pond to the open channels on the north and south sides of West Lucas Road. The City Council 
discussed various design alternatives for moving drainage to the north side of West Lucas Road 
including what that would entail, and funds needed for each proposed alternative.

On July 28, 2022, the City Council held a special meeting to consider alternative designs and 
drainage options for the West Lucas Road Reconstruction Project. The City Council approved 
Alternative 2A with a gabion basket retaining wall on the south side of West Lucas Road. This 
alternative design consisted of constructing gabion walls between the southern right-of-way 
(ROW) and the existing drainage easement on the south side. However, legal counsel has reviewed 
the drainage easement language and determined that the City of Lucas does not have the authority 
to construct or modify within the drainage easement.

This issue presents a challenge where the West Lucas Road Reconstruction Project will need to be 
relocated toward the north ROW. Since drainage from Walmart will not be permitted in southern 
drainage easement, a concrete drainage channel will need to be constructed parallel to West Lucas 
Road on the northside. 

The relocation and addition of the concrete drainage channel will impact multiple Lucas residents 
along the northern side of West Lucas Road from Walmart to Muddy Creek since it will place the 
roadway and drainage structures closer to their property. If the concrete drainage channel is shifted 
further north of West Lucas Road, this would also result in shifting the affected driveways north 
impacting residential properties.



Item No. 07 City of Lucas
Council Agenda Request

January 5, 2023 

The existing drainage channel along the southern side of West Lucas Road would need to remain 
in place from Angel Parkway to Muddy Creek for continued drainage. The West Lucas Road 
Reconstruction Project requires a proposed ROW and easement width of 120 feet. The City’s 
current ROW from the north to the south of West Lucas Road is 82 feet. Collin County requires a 
total of 120 feet; however, the remaining feet can be obtained by acquiring easements on 
the northern side of West Lucas Road. 

In addition, the proposed 14-foot median would need to be reduced to 4 feet in order to 
accommodate the existing southern drainage channel and proposed northern concrete drainage 
channel. This reduction in the median width would be necessary to construct a four-lane divided 
roadway with drainage structures and remain within the required 120-foot ROW and easement 
width. 

Due to the project challenges and possible impact to residential properties, staff is seeking direction 
from the City Council on how to proceed with moving forward with the West Lucas Road 
Reconstruction Project.

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

1. West Lucas Road Project Fiscal Summary

Budget/Financial Impact 

The cost has not yet been determined for the alternative design to construct a concrete drainage 
channel along the northern side of West Lucas Road from Walmart to Muddy Creek. 

In June 2019, the City of Lucas received an Engineer’s Opinion of Construction Cost for the West 
Lucas Road Reconstruction Project from Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter, LLP in the amount of 
$12,550,000. In December 2020, the City of Lucas entered into an Interlocal Agreement with 
Collin County to obtain funding in the amount of $8,365,180 from Collin County and with the 
City of Lucas providing $4,184,820 in funding.

In February 2021, the City entered into a professional services agreement with BCC Engineering, 
LLC for the following services:

Roadway, Drainage, Environmental, Signing/Marking, Survey, 
Subsurface Investigation, Utility Coordination, Geotech, Post-Design $1,383,490 

Construction Inspection Services $143,590 

Project Management Services $430,770 

Total $1,957,850



Item No. 07 City of Lucas
Council Agenda Request

January 5, 2023 

In April 2022, BCC Engineering, LCC updated the total estimated project cost, which was 
increased to $13,907,701, resulting in a shortfall of $1,356,701.

BHC BCC (4/11/22) Difference
Construction 10,503,000 10,932,851 (429,851)
Professional Services 852,470 1,383,490 (531,020)
Land Acquisition 826,000 826,000 0
Quality 
Control/Materials 
Testing

210,060 190,000 20,060

Construction 
Inspection

157,545 143,590 13,955

Project Management 0 430,770 (430,770)
TOTAL 12,550,000* 13,906,701 (1,356,701)

*Actual total is $12,549,075 (rounded to $12,550,000)

Note:  It is important to recognize that these cost figures are an opinion of probable costs and may 
vary from actual costs. The actual cost of the project will be determined when bids are received 
for the project.

The City Council may choose to earmark the remaining 2019 Certificate of Obligation General 
Fund balance of $1,793,193 for the West Lucas Road Reconstruction Project to cover the 
anticipated shortfall. 

As of December 30, 2022, the City has made the following payments for engineering consulting 
work from the Capital Improvements account 21-8210-491-136 which had a balance of 
$4,184,820: 

BCC Engineering, LLC  $1,383,490 

Surveying and Mapping, LLC $107,560 

Total Payments $1,491,050 

Recommendations  

NA

Motion 

There is no motion required for this item.



City of Lucas
Capital Project West Lucas Rd Project (21 8210 491 136)

BCC Engineering, LLC 1,957,850.00$
Remaining Budget
Other 2,226,970.00$
Total Approved Budget Amount 4,184,820.00$ City Match 4 2 20 CC approved funding from 2019 CO

Payments:
FY 20 21 FY 21 22 TOTAL

$ $
BCC Engineering, LLC (3 4 21) Total $1,957,850 723,656.28$ 659,833.72$ 1,383,490.00$
Construction
Surveying and Mapping LLC (4 15 21) Total $105,380 65,600.00$ 41,960.00$ 107,560.00$

Total Payments 789,256.28$ 701,793.72$ 1,491,050.00$

Encumbered:

Outstanding Design Costs (BCC) 574,360.00$
Surveying and Mapping LLC (PO 21 1099) $
Surveying and Mapping LLC (PO 22 01304) 1,530.00$
Total Outstanding Encumbered 575,890.00$

Total Budget 4,184,820.00$
Minus Payments (1,491,050.00)$
Minus Encumbered Balance (575,890.00)$
Remaining 2,117,880.00$

Note: Funding received from Collin County on 4 22 21 4,182,590.00$



Item No. 8 City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

January 5, 2023

Requesters: Councilmember Debbie Fisher 

Agenda Item Request 

Discuss the location requirements related to the installation of utility structures on public right-of-
way or easements and provide direction to the City Manager. 

Background Information 

On December 27, 2022, the City responded onsite to a contractor with Grayson Collin Electric 
Cooperative (GCEC) who was installing electrical poles on the south side of Christian Lane. The 
contractor installed a pole approximately 2.5 feet from the edge of pavement. The pole appeared 
to be very close to the edge of the road which is a safety concern for drivers. Staff met onsite with 
GCEC who agreed to relocate the pole an additional three feet from its existing location. This will 
put the electrical pole approximately five to six feet from the edge of pavement. 

Franchise utilities within the City of Lucas are permitted by State law to use public right-of-way 
and existing easements or to purchase new easements to construct, operate and maintain their 
utility systems. The City reserves certain rights to regulate the operation of franchise utilities, but 
these rights are limited under State law and must also conform to both the City of Lucas Code of 
Ordinances and the terms of each franchise utility agreement. 

In new developments in Lucas, clear zones are functionally achieved by requiring the placement 
of utilities in an easement located beyond the right-of-way line. These are the areas along roadways 
that need to be clear of obstruction, so they are not struck by a vehicle. This effectively sets utility 
structures back several feet from the edge of pavement. The City currently does not have specific 
feet requirements to be set back from the edge of pavement. 

As related to this agenda item for City Council to discuss, staff has attached the City’s Code of 
Ordinances 3.01.008 Construction in Easement and 8.01.008 Obstructions in Right-of-Way. 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

1. City of Lucas Code of Ordinance 3.01.008 Construction in Easement
2. City of Lucas Code of Ordinance 8.01.008 Obstructions in Right-of-Way
3. Christian Lane Utility Pole Site Images
4. Right-of-Way Utility Work Permit submitted by Grayson Collin Electric Cooperative

approved on December 9, 2022
5. Right-of-Way Utility Work Permit submitted by Grayson Collin Electric Cooperative

approved on October 13, 2022



Item No. 8 City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

January 5, 2023

Budget/Financial Impact 

N/A 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends establishing requirements for structures that are not designed as a 
breakaway (i.e., signs, mailboxes, fire hydrants, etc.) within the right-of-way to be located at a 
minimum of five feet from the edge of the pavement. 

Motion 

There is no motion required. 















UTIL-2022-048

















Item No. 9 City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

January 5, 2023

Requesters: Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 
Councilmember Tim Baney 
Councilmember David Keer 
Councilmember Tim Johnson 
Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
City Attorney Joe Gorfida 
City Manager Joni Clarke  

Agenda Item Request 

Consider the 88th Legislative Session and discuss any proposed bill or significant resolution that 
may have an impact on the City of Lucas and provide guidance to the City Attorney and City 
Manager. 

Background Information 

The 88th Legislature’s regular session runs from January 10 to May 29, 2023. Last session, 
lawmakers in the Texas House and Senate filed nearly 7,000 bills and passed just over 1,000 of 
them with the Governor vetoing 21 of them. 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

1. The Texas Municipal League Legislative Program (2023-2024)

Budget/Financial Impact 

N/A

Recommendation 

N/A 

Motion 

N/A 



















 
City of Lucas 

City Council Agenda Request 
January 5, 2023 

Item No. 10 

Requester: City Secretary Erin Day 
  City Council 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider appointing City Council liaisons to the City’s boards, commissions, and committees, as 
well as outside local organizations.  
 
Background Information  
 
The table below outlines current City Council liaisons to boards, commissions, and committees, 
as well as outside organizations. There is a vacancy on the North Central Texas Council of 
Governments.  
 
Board/Commission/Organization  City Councilmember 
Planning and Zoning Commission  Mayor Olk  
Board of Adjustment  Mayor Pro Tem Peele  
Parks and Open Space Board  Councilmember Baney  
North Texas Municipal Water District  Councilmember Fisher  
North Central Texas Council of Governments  Vacant 
Service Tree Committee  Councilmembers Fisher and Johnson 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
City of Lucas 

City Council Agenda Request 
January 5, 2023 

Item No. 10 

Motion  
 
I make a motion to: 
 
Appoint _____________ as City Council liaison to the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
Appoint _____________ as City Council liaison to the Board of Adjustment. 
 
Appoint _____________ as City Council liaison to the Parks and Open Space Board. 
 
Appoint _____________ as City Council liaison to the North Texas Municipal Water District 
Board. 
 
Appoint _____________ as City Council liaison to the North Central Texas Council of 
Governments. 
 
Appoint _____________ as City Council liaison to the Service Tree Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 



Item No. 11 City of Lucas
City Council Agenda Request

January 5, 2023
Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

Agenda Item Request 

Executive Session: An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting.

As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene 
into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City 
Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. This meeting is closed 
to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code.

Background Information 

NA

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

NA

Budget/Financial Impact 

NA

Recommendation  

NA

Motion 

NA



Item No. 12 City of Lucas
City Council Agenda Request

January 5, 2023
Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

Agenda Item Request 

Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the Executive 
Session.

Background Information 

NA

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

NA

Budget/Financial Impact 

NA

Recommendation  

NA

Motion 

NA


	Agenda
	Item 1 - Citizen Input
	Item 2 - Items of Community Interest
	Item 3 - Public Hearing Parker Road
	Item 4 - Public Hearing Impact Fees (Cancelled)
	Item 5 - Consent Agenda
	Item 6 - Junked Vehicle Ordinance
	Item 7 - West Lucas Road Reconstruction Project
	Item 8 - Utility Structures Discussion
	Item 9 - Legislative Discussion
	Item 10 - City Council Liaisons 
	Item 11 - Executive Session
	Item 12 - Reconvene from Executive Session



